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1. Q: Under Task 10, there are only 80 hours provided.  The task includes completing three Project Benefit Questionnaires, developing a methodology to estimate benefits, and preparing a summary of electricity load shape research costs.  The sub-tasks included in Task 10 are varied in their scope and intensity. One item that is unclear, however, is who is surveyed as part of the Project Benefits Questionnaire?
	A: The Contractor is the entity being surveyed for the Project Benefits Questionnaires. The Energy Commission will provide the three benefits questionnaires to the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible for completing the questionnaires and returning them to the CAM in accordance with the project schedule. 

2. Q: For all tasks, are we limited to using the specific personnel general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1?
	A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

3. Q: Under Task 1 in the RFP, the expected general classifications for work by task is Administrators. In Tab 7b of the budget workbook, the classifications for Task 1 include ‘administrators’ and ‘program managers.’ Task 1 includes items that are traditionally undertaken by administrators, but it also includes items that might require other project personnel such as the kick-off meeting, TAC meetings, and final report. For the budget and the project, are we limited to using personnel with the title ‘administrators’ and ‘program manager’ for Task 1?
	A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

4. Q: Traditionally, our program managers are also individuals with substantial industry knowledge and technical skills. Table 1 in the RFP does not include the expected general classification of program manager, but Tab 7b of the budget workbook has program manager in Task 1 and Tasks 9-12.  Is it possible to include program managers for Tasks 1-12?
	A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

5. Q: If we are held to the specific personnel general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1, are ‘data analysts’ different from ‘data analytics’?  Is ‘administrator’ the same as ‘administrative’?
	A: Attachment 7b has been updated to be consistent with Table 1 in the RFP.

6. Q: For the proposal, the bids are held to the hours by task in Table 1.  For the project, will the work and billing be held to the hours by task in Table 1?
	A: The hours listed in Table 1 are the expected hours needed to complete the work.  Any excess of these hours will need to be reviewed internally and may require a formal amendment prior to providing additional services. 

7. Q: Tab 7b in the budget workbook assigns hours for Task 12 by expected general classification. Are we required to keep these hours for Task 12 by expected general classification?  
	As specific work is not yet known for this task, the expected total hours was divided equally amongst the expected general classifications to complete the work.  Bidders must not deviate from these hours by classification. 

8. Q: Can one employee fulfill multiple general classifications? For example, the program manager might also be a statistician. Since these general classifications are allowed to work on different tasks, a single employee might fulfill both roles and need to work on all tasks allowed by both classifications.
	A: Yes, one employee can fill more than one role if they have the skills sets to complete the tasks identified in the RFP. 

9. Q: Are the General Classifications identified in the fifth column of Table 1 in the RFP intended as an example or are they prescribed such that bidders cannot deviate from them?
	A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

10. Q: If bidders cannot deviate from the General Classifications identified in the RFP, can bidders assign sub categories to any of the classifications? For example, teams are allowed to have tiers for the "Engineers" classification, such as Principal Engineer, Senior Engineer, Entry-Level Engineer. 
	A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

11. Q: If bidders cannot deviate from the General Classifications identified in the RFP, is each entity able to have their own rates for each classification, i.e. will each prime contractor vs. their subcontractors be allowed to have different rates across the same job classifications? 
	A: Varying rates is acceptable.  However, the highest rate for each general classification must be used in developing the cost bid.  

12. Q: If bidders cannot deviate from the General Classifications identified in the RFP, must they also adhere precisely to the classifications listed for each task? For example, no other classification aside from Administrators and Program Managers can work on Task 1, and Computer Programmers must work on Task 2. 
A: Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. 

13. Q: Table 1 in the RFP lists 1600 hours for Task 12 and the associated text in the RFP says "The hours provided on Attachment 7b are the same as the Expected Level of Effort set forth in Table 1." Attachment 7b also lists 1600 hours for Task 12 but furthermore has pre-populated hours for each classification (between 145 and 146 hours for each classification). This is not discussed in the word document of the RFP. Are the hours by classification for Task 12 in Attachment 7b to be held constant as published?
	A: As specific work is not yet known for this task, the expected total hours was divided equally amongst the expected general classifications to complete the work.  Bidders must not deviate from these hours by classification. 

14. Q: Can staff members whose skill sets apply to multiple job classifications be listed in more than one job classification? 
	A: Yes, one employee can fill more than one role if they have the skills sets to complete the tasks identified in the RFP.

15. Q: On page 18 it says “Each Bidder shall identify their proposed number of hours for each of the general classifications that they list. The total number of hours for classifications in that task must equal the total Level of Effort (Hours) identified in Table 1.  No adjustments to the Level of Effort (Hours or % of total contract) will be permitted in bids.” Can you confirm (or clarify) that you expect participants to assess the relative ratio of hours in each task to the resources identified in the General Classification column?
A: Each bidder shall identify their proposed number of hours for each of the general classifications that they list. The total number of hours for classifications in that task must equal the total Level of Effort (Hours) identified in Table 1. : Bidders are limited to using the general classifications that are listed by task in Table 1. Bidders may also identify their specific classifications for personnel to perform the work but Bidders must also place each personnel into the appropriate general classification.  This will ensure that all Bids are compared consistently. .
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16. Q: On page 28 the RFP states “The Energy Commission will work with utilities to acquire the interval meter data needed to support the proposed analytical work.” Does the CEC have high confidence in getting meter data from the utilities and if not should the applicant propose alternative methods to baseline load data in its application?
	A: As outlined in the RFP, the Energy Commission will work to obtain the data necessary for the implementation of the project. However, the bidder is required to recommend alternative source(s) as described in Task 3: “To the extent primary data cannot be obtained, recommend which of the alternative data sources, identified in task 2, and should be acquired. Acquire secondary data as directed by CEC staff.”
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17. Q: In Task 2 it says “Any such proposals must not require the purchase of proprietary models either for immediate use or for continuation of the work in future analyses. Instead, any models created or used must be available for Energy Commission staff to re-use in the future without cost. Models also must be transparent and well documented.” If an applicant has already built a proprietary model and is willing to provide it as part of their application at no charge – will the commission agree to treat the model documentation as confidential?
A: No confidential information should be submitted in bids. Generally speaking, as a state-government agency, the Energy Commission is required to share data with the public. As to deliverables in any contract that may result from this RFP, a bidder may request that data that is part of a product or deliverable in a proposed resultant contract be kept confidential in Attachment C-1 of the proposed contract. The burden is on the bidder to prove to the Energy Commission that a statutory exemption to the Public Records Act is applicable, and the Energy Commission’s legal office will make a determination as to whether or not the proposed data will be kept confidential. 

18. Q: Task 6 is described as “The goal of this task is to project hourly load profiles, taking into account changes to end-use consumption patterns that may occur as the result of DSM activities and other trends. The work performed under this task will be an implementation of the load shape projection methodology developed in task 2and will utilize data, baseline load profiles, and energy efficiency load impact profiles developed in task 3, task 4, and task 5. Any models developed in the implementation must not be proprietary and must be available to the Energy Commission for use in future analyses.” When the RFP says the models are not proprietary and must be available to the Commission is it possible for the models to be proprietary and provided to the Commission?
	A: No. Any models developed in the implementation must not be proprietary and must be available to the Energy Commission for use in future analyses.  Please note that Attachment C-1 deals with intellectual property as well as confidential products. 

19. Q: In Task 9 the RFP states “Documentation may leverage the analytic framework developed in task 2, but should be provided in sufficient detail as to allow a third party to replicate the analysis, given similar resources.” Please clarify the Commissions intention for making available to the public documentation of methodologies developed during the course of this and any models used but not developed in the course of this work.
A: The Energy Commission intends to use the products of this project – models, databases, etc. - for the foreseeable future. In addition, the dynamic nature of the energy market could require assessment and modifications to the project’s original plans (methodologies, assumptions, and data). Therefore, to meet future challenges, the products developed under this project should have the flexibility to be modified by Energy Commission staff and/or any third party chosen by the Energy Commission. Such flexibility is likely to mean the contractor has to provide the source code and sufficient documentation to allow the source code to be modified and obtain correct results.

20. Q: In Task 2 it says “Any such proposals must not require the purchase of proprietary models either for immediate use or for continuation of the work in future analyses. Instead, any models created or used must be available for Energy Commission staff to re-use in the future without cost. Models also must be transparent and well documented.” Does the value of the work invested in making a proprietary model count as matching funds if it is provided at no charge to the CEC?
A: No, the value of work invested in making a proprietary model does not count as matching funds. 

21. Q: Are the methods and models the CEC are using for forecasting peak electricity loads, as described in RFP-15-332, currently available for review or will they only be released to those who are awarded?
A: The peak forecasting methodology is described in Chapter 7 of the Energy Demand Forecast Methods Report, available at: 
http://www.energy.ca.gov/publications/displayOneReport.php?pubNum=CEC-400-2005-036
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22. Q: Page 42 of the RFP stipulates that electronic files of the proposal must be in Microsoft Word XP (.doc or .docx format) and Excel Office Suite formats.  Please confirm that Word 2013 and Excel 2013 are also acceptable formats.
A: Yes, Word 2013 and Excel 2013 are acceptable forms of submission.  

23. Q: Where within Section 2 should references be placed?  The table on page 43 of the RFP indicates that references should be placed after Budget and Cost Effectiveness, but page 45 seems to indicate that they should be placed within the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection.
A: The RFP will be updated to move client references in the table on page 43 to be after Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources. 

24. Q: On page 15, under Software Application Development, a set of programming and database tools is listed.  Statistical modeling tools, like SAS, are not listed.  Is delivery of regression models and scenario calculations using SAS acceptable to the Energy Commission?
A: At this time, the Energy Commission staff are limited to SAS capabilities using their desktops. If Software Application Development required an external server, this would require Energy Commission review and approval. 

25. Q: Guidelines for page limits are missing in this RFP. Does this mean that there are none, or is it an omission?
A: There are no page limits.

26. Q: In case of an omission, what is the page limit for each of the following sections?
· Technical Need and Merit
· Technical Approach
· [bookmark: _Toc35074599][bookmark: _Toc217726124]Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources
· Previous Work Products  
· EPIC Funds Spent in California
· Budget and Cost-Effectiveness
A: There are no page limits. 
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27. Q: Is a bidder supposed to address all 4 RFP topics (identified below)?
· Identify research opportunities to expand the range of low-cost, low-emission options to integrate wind energy, solar energy, and wide-scale electric vehicle charging in the California ISO balancing area, including strategies and technologies to lower the risk of mid-day overgeneration, balance rapid swings in generation, and lower the late afternoon peak, especially in spring.
· Provide end‐use load shape characterization of electricity demand from existing energy technologies and end‐users.
· Analyze how changes in technology mix and end user consumption patterns might impact load shapes over time.
· Assess how rate designs (such as time-of-use) and other demand response activities might impact load shapes over time.
A: The topics listed (in Task 12 of the proposed SOW) are goals for the project and the work completed in earlier tasks is meant to reach those goals. Task 12 addresses unanticipated issues that would prevent us from reaching the goals identified in the RFP. 

28. Q: Will only one contract be awarded, even if the requested dollar amount is, for example, $1 million? 
	A: Yes, only one contract will be awarded for this RFP. 

29. Q: The turnaround time between the publication of the RFP and the submission deadline is short. Are letters of commitment required regardless of this short turnaround time?
 	A: Letters of commitment are required if match funds are being used. 
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30. Q: Is the Technical Approach in the scoring criteria referenced on page 51 an assessment of the applicant’s approach to Tasks 2 – 7 only?  If no, please identify the specific Tasks for which the Technical approach is to be judged.
A: Tasks 2-9 include technical components which will be assessed and scored pursuant to Scoring Criteria 2, “Technical Approach.” 
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